
Page 1 of 2 
 

SMOKY LAKE COUNTY COUNCIL MEETING 
AGENDA 

Thursday, March 27th, 2025, at 9:00 a.m. held 
Virtually  https://video.businessconnect.telus.com/join/421105269 (Meeting ID #421105269) and Physically 

in Smoky Lake County Council Chambers, 4612 McDougall Drive, Smoky Lake 
 

************************************************************************************************************************** 
1. Call to Order 

 
2. Adoption of Agenda 

 
3. Adoption of Minutes 

3.1. Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting, Thursday, March 13th, 2025 
3.2. Minutes of the Municipal Planning Commission Meeting, Thursday March 13th, 2025 

 
4. Delegation(s) 

4.1. FCSS Grant Application- Lise VanDerVaart @ 9:30 a.m. 
4.2. Smoky Lake Legion President Harvey Prockiw @ 9:45 a.m. 
4.3. Smoky Lake RCMP- SGT Anita Doktor & Supt Hanson @10:00a.m. 
4.4. RMA Member Visit @1:00PM 

 
5. Public Hearing  

Nil 
 

6. Municipal Planning Commission (MPC)  
Nil 

 
PUBLIC QUESTION AND ANSWER PERIOD - announced between 11:30 a.m. & 12:00 p.m. 

 
7. Business – Requests for Decisions 

7.1. Bylaw No. 1477-25: A Bylaw to amend Land Use Bylaw No. 1272-14 to Redistrict the lands 
legally described as NW-27-60-14-W4M, from Rural Industrial (M2) to Agriculture (AG District); 
and to amend Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 1249-12 to Reclassify the lands legally 
described as NW-27-60-14-W4M from Commercial Area to Agriculture Area. 

7.2. Offer to Purchase County-Owned lands legally described as Plan 716CL, Block 2, Lot 1, located 
within the Hamlet of Warspite. 

7.3. Request for Smoky Lake County to clear undeveloped road allowance and construct road – 
SE-14-59-16-W4M 

7.4. Policy No. 01-54-01 The Signing authority policy 
7.5. Request for Donation to Smoky Lake Holubka Dancers Highway Cleanup 
7.6. Cancellation of Policy 01-01-02 Procedures and Transacting of Organizational Meeting 
7.7. Donation request for Educational Opportunity  
7.8. Delta Waterflow Parkland Pintails Chapter Donation for Fundraiser Dinner  
7.9. 2025 Farmers Appreciation Event, June 13th, 2025 
7.10. Draft Policy: Volunteer Firefighter Compensation 
7.11. Fire Department Equipment Insurance   
7.12. RFD – Legislative Services Employment Opportunity  

 
 

https://video.businessconnect.telus.com/join/421105269


Smoky Lake County Council Agenda 
March 27th, 2025 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
8. Chief Administrative Officer (CAO) Report 

 
8.1. CAO Report  

 
9. Council Committee Reports 

9.1. Councillor Division One Report (handout) 
9.2. Councillor Division Two Report (handout) 
9.3. Councillor Division Three & Deputy Reeve Report (handout) 
9.4. Councillor Division Four Report (handout) 
9.5. Councillor Division Five & Reeve’s Report (handout) 

 
10. Correspondence  

10.1     Explore Two Hills Tourism Conference & Tradeshow Event, Dated, April 30th, 2025, hosted by 
the Two Hills Economic Development in partnership with Go East of Edmonton  

10.2      Tourism Development: Info Sharing for Entrepreneurs & Operators Event flyer, Dated, April 23, 
2025, located at the Metis Crossing Cultural Gathering Centre  

10.3     Letter from Damien DeClercq, Prairie North Corp. LTD, dated March 10th, 2025, Smoky Lake   
County- Contract 20233697-01 – BF76552 Culvert Replacement 

10.4     Aspen View Public Schools Career Fair Event, Dated, April 23rd, 2025, located in Athabasca 
Regional Multiplex request for Smoky Lake County Council and or Employees to attend to 
promote Smoky Lake County Career opportunities  

10.5     Lisa MacLean, Executive Director – Alberta Fire Chief Association, Email dated February 3, 
2025. Re: 77th Annual Alberta Fire Chief Association Conference and Trade Show 

10.6       Email from Perry Gillam: Emergency Response Specialist - Enbridge, dated November 2, 2024 
and January 21, 2025, in respect to Fueling Futures Grant in the amount of $25,000.00 

11. Information Release 
 Nil.   

12. Financial Reports 
Nil. 

13. Next Meetings 
13.1. Reconfirm Smoky Lake County Council’s scheduled upcoming Meetings are as follows: 

Thursday, April 10th, 2025, at 9:00 a.m. (Regular), 
Tuesday, April 22nd, 2025, at 9:00 a.m. (Budget) 
Thursday, April 24th, 2025, at 9:00 a.m. (Regular), 
Thursday, May 8th, 2025, at 9:00 a.m. (Regular), 
Thursday, May 22nd, 2025, at 9:00 a.m. (Regular), and 
Thursday, June 3rd, 2025, at 9:00 a.m. (CAO Evaluation). 

14. In Camera (Executive Session) 
 

14.1. Personnel Issue, in respect staff from the Chief Administrative Officer, under the authority of 
the FOIP Act, Sections 27: Privileged Information and 17: Third Party Personal Privacy 
 

 
15. Adjournment. 



County Council Meeting          15883 
March 13, 2025 

 SMOKY LAKE COUNTY 
 

Minutes of the County Council Meeting held on Thursday, March 13, 
2025, at 9:05 A.M. held both virtually online and physically in Council 
Chambers. 

 
The meeting was called to order by the Reeve, Jered Serben, in the 
presence of the following persons: 
 

   ATTENDANCE 
 Div. No. Councillor(s) Thursday, Mar. 13, 2025 
 1 Dan Gawalko Present in Chambers 
 2 Linda Fenerty Virtually Present 
 3 / Deputy Reeve Dominique Céré Present in Chambers 

 4 Lorne Halisky Present in Chambers 
 5 / Reeve Jered Serben Present in Chambers 
 CAO Kevin Lucas Present in Chambers 
 Finance Manager Brenda Adamson Virtually Present 
 Municipal Clerk/RS Meaghan Andreychuk Present in Chambers 
 ********************************************************* 
 Observers in Attendance Upon Call to Order: 

 Comm. Officer Evonne Zukiwski Virtually Present 
 P & D Manager Jordan Ruegg Virtually Present 
 Health & Safety Cor. Jasmine Schaub Virtually Present 
 Acting Ag Fieldman Kierstin Dubitz Virtually Present 
 Enviro Ops Manager Dave Franchuk Virtually Present 
 Natural Gas Mng. Daniel Moric Virtually Present 
 Public 6 Members Virtually Present 

          
    
    
 2. Agenda: 

 
320-25: Céré That the Smoky Lake County Council Meeting Agenda for Thursday, 

March 13, 2025, be adopted, as presented. 
 
 
Addition the Agenda:  

1. Backsloping Application dated: March 12, 2025 
2. Family & Community Support Services (FCSS) Applications 
3. Travel Lakeland Edmonton Boat & Sportsman Show 
4. Alberta Bilingual Municipalities (charging for memberships) 
5. Warspite Foundation Country 1st Annual Country Fair 

 
 
 

Carried Unanimously. 
 
 

 3.  Minutes: 
 

3.1. Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting, February 13, 2025 
321-25: Gawalko That the minutes of the Smoky Lake County Regular Council Meeting, 

held on Thursday, February 13, 2025, be adopted as presented. 
 

Carried. 
 

3.2. Minutes of the Special Council Meeting, February 19, 2025 
322-25: Halisky That the minutes of the Smoky Lake County Special Council Meeting, 

held on Wednesday, February 19, 2025, be adopted as presented. 
 

Carried. 

3.1



County Council Meeting          15884 
March 13, 2025 

 
 7. Request for Decision: 

 
7.1.1. Sponsorship Requests from Victoria Trail Agricultural Society 
323-25: Serben 
 

That Smoky Lake County purchase a gold sponsorship in the amount 
of $1000.00 towards the Victoria Trail Agricultural Society Fair Days, 
scheduled for August 8 to 10, 2025, in response to the letter request 
received from Dave Harsulla, dated January 13, 2025. 

Carried. 
 

7.1.2.  Sponsorship Requests from Endurance Riders of AB 
325-25: Céré 
 

That Smoky Lake County provide funding in the amount of $400.00 
and Smoky Lake County Promotional Products towards The Endurance 
Riders of Alberta for the Mighty Moose Miles ride scheduled for April 
26-27, 2025, to be held north of Warspite, in response to the letter 
request received from Irene van der Kloet dated February 27, 2025. 
 

Carried. 
 

County Council Meeting Recessed 
 The Smoky Lake County Deputy Reeve announced the Council Meeting 

recessed, time 9:29 a.m. 
 

 5. Public Hearing: 
 

 
 PUBLIC HEARING: 

 
Bylaw No. 1472-25: to Redistrict & Reclassify NE-34-59-13-W4 from Residential to Ag. 
1.0 Opening 
 The Public Hearing was called to order at 9:29 a.m. by the Reeve, Jered 

Serben, in the physical presence of all Council members, Chief 
Administrative Officer, Municipal Clerk, Finance Manager, and 
Planning and Development Manager with 5 Members of the Public 
online, as well as 12 other County Staff.  
 
The purpose of the hearing was summarized: To obtain public input in 
respect to the proposed Bylaw: No. 1472-25, which is a Bylaw for 
amending the Smoky Lake County Land Use Bylaw No.1272-14 to 
redistrict all the portions of the lands legally described as NE-34-59-13-
W4M, from Residential Conservation (R2) District to Agriculture (AG) 
District; and to amend Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 1249-
12, to reclassify the lands legally described as NE-34-59-13-W4M, from 
Residential Conservation Area to Agriculture Area; and to amend 
Bonnie Lake Area Structure Plan Bylaw No. 1146-07, to reclassify the 
lands legally described as NE-34-59-13-W4M, from Residential 
Conservation Area to Agriculture Area. 

 
The rules of the Public Hearing were stated, and confirmation was 
provided by the Chief Administrative Officer that the Public Hearing 
had been advertised, and notice was provided in accordance with the 
applicable legislation. 
 

2.0 Staff Presentation 
 Jordan Ruegg, Planning and Development Manager provided the 

following information: 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 The Smoky Lake County Planning and Development Department received an 

application to amend Smoky Lake County Land Use Bylaw #1272-14, 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw #1249-12, and Bonnie Lake Area 
Structure Plan #1146-07, from Casey Tchir, dated December 17, 2024, to 
redistrict/reclassify all the portions of the lands legally described as NE-34-59-



County Council Meeting          15885 
March 13, 2025 

13-W4M, located on the south shore of Whitefish Lake. 
 The lands in question are approximately 142.7 acres in area. 
 The applicant proposes to amend the Land Use Bylaw, Municipal 

Development Plan, and Bonnie Lake Area Structure Plan to allow for the 
quarter section to be subdivided for acreage purposes under the Agriculture 
District in Land Use Bylaw #1272-14. 

 Should Bylaw #1472-25 receive Third Reading, the owner of the lands will be 
required to obtain approval from the County’s Subdivision Authority for any 
proposed subdivision. Any proposed subdivision shall meet the regulations of 
the Agriculture District under Land Use Bylaw #1272-14, and any additional 
conditions prescribed by the County’s Subdivision Authority. Adoption of 
Bylaw #1472-25 does not constitute subdivision approval. 

 
 

3.0 Public Presentations Via Written Submissions 
 There were 4 written submissions received in advance of the March 13, 

2025, Public Hearing, from Ed Basaraba, Jason Desaulniers, Brian 
Karperien, and Sylvia Anne Strozyk. The 4 submissions were read into 
the record as follows:  
 
 

 



County Council Meeting          15886 
March 13, 2025 

 
 

4.0 Public Presentations at the Public Hearing: 
 Nil.  

 
4.0 Questions and Answers 
 
 

Maria Di Castri (Online) in support of Bylaw 1467-24 although had 
concerns about if subdivision will increase infrastructure and create 
more traffic around the area.  
  
Jordan Ruegg (Planning and Development Manager) explained 
although there is no district under the Smoky Lake County’s Bylaw that 
prevents subdivision entirely the Agricultural district is the most 
limiting to do so. The proposed redistricting is potentially less intensive 
use of the current districting allows.  
 

5.0 Closing Remarks 
 There being no further presentations, and seeing that the Proponent 

withdrew their request, the Reeve thanked everyone for their comments 
and for attending the Public Hearing. 
 
The Public Hearing for the Proposed Bylaw No. 1467-24, was then 



County Council Meeting          15887 
March 13, 2025 

declared closed, time 10:03 a.m. 
 

County Council Meeting Reconvened 
Meeting Reconvened The Smoky Lake County Council Meeting reconvened, at a call to order 

by Reeve Serben, time 10:04 a.m., in the physical presence of all 
Council Members, Chief Administrative Officer, Finance Manager, 
Municipal Clerk, and 5 virtual attendees including  7 other County staff 
members. 
 
 

 7. Request for Decision: 
 

325-25: Serben  That Smoky Lake County Council go into Executive Session in the 
presence of all Council, Chief Administrative Officer (CAO), Planning 
and Development Manager to discuss a Legal Land Issue: in respect to 
Third party business interests, under the authority of the FOIP Act 
Section 16: Third party business interests and Section 24: Advice from 
Officials, time 10:07 a.m. 
 
 

 Councilor Fenerty left the meeting virtually at 10:07 a.m. 
326-25: Céré That Smoky Lake County Council go out of Executive Session, time 

10:39 a.m. 
 

7.2. Bylaw No. 1472-25: to Redistrict & Reclassify NE-34-59-13-W4 from Residential to Ag. 
327-25: Céré 
 

That Smoky Lake County Bylaw No. 1472-25: to Redistrict & 
Reclassify NE-34-59-13-W4 from Residential to Agricultural, for the 
purpose of amending the Smoky Lake County Land Use Bylaw 
No.1272-14 to redistrict all the portions of the lands legally described as 
NE-34-59-13-W4M, from Residential Conservation (R2) District to 
Agriculture (AG) District; and to amend Municipal Development Plan 
Bylaw No. 1249-12, to reclassify the lands legally described as NE-34-
59-13-W4M, from Residential Conservation Area to Agriculture Area; 
and to amend Bonnie Lake Area Structure Plan Bylaw No. 1146-07, to 
reclassify the lands legally described as NE-34-59-13-W4M, from 
Residential Conservation Area to Agriculture Area, be given FIRST 
READING. 

Carried. 
 
Moved by Councilor Céré that Smoky Lake County Bylaw No. 1472-
25: to Redistrict & Reclassify NE-34-59-13-W4 from Residential to 
Agricultural, for the purpose of amending the Smoky Lake County Land 
Use Bylaw No.1272-14 to redistrict all the portions of the lands legally 
described as NE-34-59-13-W4M, from Residential Conservation (R2) 
District to Agriculture (AG) District; and to amend Municipal 
Development Plan Bylaw No. 1249-12, to reclassify the lands legally 
described as NE-34-59-13-W4M, from Residential Conservation Area 
to Agriculture Area; and to amend Bonnie Lake Area Structure Plan 
Bylaw No. 1146-07, to reclassify the lands legally described as NE-34-
59-13-W4M, from Residential Conservation Area to Agriculture Area, 
be given SECOND READING. 

Carried. 
 
Moved By Councilor Céré that Smoky Lake County Council give 
unanimous consent for permission for Third Reading to Bylaw No. 
1472-25: to Redistrict & Reclassify NE-34-59-13-W4 from Residential 
to Agricultural, for the purpose of amending the Smoky Lake County 
Land Use Bylaw No.1272-14 to redistrict all the portions of the lands 
legally described as NE-34-59-13-W4M, from Residential Conservation 
(R2) District to Agriculture (AG) District; and to amend Municipal 
Development Plan Bylaw No. 1249-12, to reclassify the lands legally 
described as NE-34-59-13-W4M, from Residential Conservation Area 



County Council Meeting          15888 
March 13, 2025 

to Agriculture Area; and to amend Bonnie Lake Area Structure Plan 
Bylaw No. 1146-07, to reclassify the lands legally described as NE-34-
59-13-W4M, from Residential Conservation Area to Agriculture Area. 
 

Carried Unanimously. 
 
Moved by Councilor Céré that Smoky Lake County Bylaw No. Bylaw 
No. 1472-25: to Redistrict & Reclassify NE-34-59-13-W4 from 
Residential to Agricultural, for the purpose of amending the Smoky 
Lake County Land Use Bylaw No.1272-14 to redistrict all the portions 
of the lands legally described as NE-34-59-13-W4M, from Residential 
Conservation (R2) District to Agriculture (AG) District; and to amend 
Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 1249-12, to reclassify the lands 
legally described as NE-34-59-13-W4M, from Residential Conservation 
Area to Agriculture Area; and to amend Bonnie Lake Area Structure 
Plan Bylaw No. 1146-07, to reclassify the lands legally described as NE-
34-59-13-W4M, from Residential Conservation Area to Agriculture 
Area, be given THIRD & FINAL READING, and that the Reeve and 
the Chief Administrative Officer are hereby authorized to fix their 
signatures to all necessary documents and that the corporate seal also be 
fastened where it is deemed to be necessary. 

Carried. 
 

7.11  Smoky Lake Truck Fill Water Capacity (Handout)  
728-25: Serben That Smoky Lake County instruct administration to follow up with 

additional information regarding Smoky Lake Truck Fill and bring it 
forward to a future Council Meeting 

Carried. 
 

7.3. Bylaw No. 1476-25: Borrowing Bylaw 
729-25: Halisky 
 

That Smoky Lake County Bylaw No. 1476-25: Borrowing Bylaw, for 
the purpose of providing authorization to borrow up to $5,000,000.00 on 
the operating line of credit and $50,000.00 on the Corporate Mastercard 
Account, be given FIRST READING. 

Carried. 
 
Moved by Councilor Gawalko that Smoky Lake County Bylaw No. 
1476-25: Borrowing Bylaw, for the purpose of providing authorization 
to borrow up to $5,000,000.00 on the operating line of credit and 
$50,000.00 on the Corporate Mastercard Account, be given SECOND 
READING. 

Carried. 
 
Moved By Councilor Céré that Smoky Lake County Council give 
unanimous consent for permission for Third Reading to Bylaw No. 
1476-25: Borrowing Bylaw, for the purpose of providing authorization 
to borrow up to $5,000,000.00 on the operating line of credit and 
$50,000.00 on the Corporate Mastercard Account. 
 

Carried Unanimously. 
 
Moved by Councilor Halisky that Smoky Lake County Bylaw No. 1476-
25: Borrowing Bylaw, for the purpose of providing authorization to 
borrow up to $5,000,000.00 on the operating line of credit and 
$50,000.00 on the Corporate Mastercard Account, be given THIRD & 
FINAL READING, and that the Reeve and the Chief Administrative 
Officer are hereby authorized to fix their signatures to all necessary 
documents and that the corporate seal also be fastened where it is 
deemed to be necessary. 
 

Carried. 
 



County Council Meeting          15889 
March 13, 2025 

7.4. Assessment Review Board Appointments 
730-25: Céré 
 

That Smoky Lake County, in accordance with Bylaw No. 1417-22: 
Assessment Review Board, appoint members to the Assessment Review 
Board (ARB) for Year-2025, as follows:  
 Raymond Ralph, as the ARB Chairperson,  
 Gerryl Amorin, as the Certified ARB Clerk, and  
 Darlene Chartrand, Sheryl Exley, Tina Groszko, Richard 

Knowles, Marcel LeBlanc, and Raymond Ralph, as the ARB 
Certified Panelists. 

Carried. 
 

7.5. Federation of Alberta Gas Co-ops Ltd. Voting Delegate Appointments 
731-25: Serben 
 

That Smoky Lake County appoint Councilor Halisky as the voting 
delegate and Councilor Gawalko as the alternate voting delegate, to 
authorize them to vote at the Federation of Alberta Gas Co-ops Ltd. 
meetings, conventions, annual general meetings, and any other official 
meeting requiring voting of the Federation; and execute the Designation 
Form, in accordance with the Federation’s Supplemental Bylaws 
(Section 15).  

Carried. 
 

7.6 Community Peace Officer Policies (nine different policies) 
 That Smoky Lake County Council defer the Community Peace Officer 

Policies from 7.6.1-7.6.9 to the April 10th, Regular County Council 
Meeting.  
 

Carried. 
 
7.7 Policy Statement No. 14-A.02-04:  Incident Reporting  
732-25: Céré 
 

That Smoky Lake County Policy Statement No. 14-A.02-04: Incident 
reporting be amended to enhance the incident investigation process, 
incorporate a crime-related incident investigation procedure, add a 
follow-up section to the incident report, and include a workplace 
violence/harassment reporting option: 
 
 



County Council Meeting          15890 
March 13, 2025 

 

 



County Council Meeting          15891 
March 13, 2025 

 

 

 



County Council Meeting          15892 
March 13, 2025 

 

 

 
 

Carried. 
 

7.8. Alberta Emergency Alert Course Approval 
733-25: Halisky  
 

That Smoky Lake County approve the Health & Safety 
Coordinator/Director of Emergency Management to take the Alberta 



County Council Meeting          15893 
March 13, 2025 

Emergency Alert Course with the Government of Alberta to become 
authorized to issue emergency alerts as the Director of Emergency 
Management for the County and authorize two senior officials to sign 
off on the required form for course enrollment.   

Carried. 
 

7.9. Annual Safety Meeting – Office Closures 
734-25: Halisky 
 

That Smoky Lake County Council approve to close the Admin Office 
and Public Works Shop on Thursday April 17th, 2025, to accommodate 
the attendance of all employees at the Annual Safety Meeting.   
 

Carried. 
 

7.10. Backsloping Application for NW-12-58-14-W4 and SW-1-60-14-W4 
735-25: Gawalko 
 

That Smoky Lake County Council approve the backsloping program 
project along the lands legally described as NW-12-58-14-W4, as per 
the application received from Brad Shapka, dated March 4, 2025, and 
subject to the pass of an inspection conduction by the Public Works 
Manager or designate, upon completion the County will provide funding 
to the applicant in the amount of half the total cost of the project up to a 
maximum amount of $2,500.00, in accordance with County Policy 
Statement No.03-21-06.  

Carried. 
 

736-25: Gawalko 
 
 
 

That Smoky Lake County Council approve the backsloping program 
project along the lands legally described as SW-1-60-14-W4, as per the 
application received from Brad Veno, dated March 12, 2025, and subject 
to the pass of an inspection conduction by the Public Works Manager or 
designate, upon completion the County will provide funding to the 
applicant in the amount of half the total cost of the project up to a 
maximum amount of $5,000.00, in accordance with County Policy 
Statement No.03-21-06.  

Carried. 
 

7.12. Family & Community Support Services (FCSS) Applications 
737-25: Halisky 
 

That Smoky Lake County approve to allocate funding from the 2025 
Family and Community Support Services (FCSS) Grant budget in 
accordance with Policy no 08-17-01: Family and Community Support 
Services (FCSS) grant as follows: 
 
$2,500.00 to Bellis Board of Trade for the 1st Volunteer Appreciation 
Event on September 7th, 2025 
 
 
 Carried. 
 

738-25: Gawalko That Smoky Lake County approve to allocate funding from the 2025 
Family and Community Support Services (FCSS) Grant budget in 
accordance with Policy no 08-17-01: Family and Community Support 
Services (FCSS) grant as follows: 
 
$1,590.00 to Friends of the Vilna Pool Hall Society for 2025 volunteer 
appreciation  
 

Carried. 
 

7.13 Travel Lakeland Request- Boat and Sportsman Show  
739-25- Serben That Smoky Lake County Council approve to provide funds in the 

amount of $300.00 and Smoky Lake County table banner to the 
Travel Lakeland Promotional Booth displayed at the Edmonton Boat 
and Sportsman show held on March 20th to 23rd, 2025 located at the 
Edmonton Expo Centre.  



County Council Meeting          15894 
March 13, 2025 

 
Carried. 

  
7.14 Alberta Bilingual Municipalities Membership Fees  
740-25- Serben That Smoky Lake County accept the information for future Council 

meetings regarding the new implementation of Alberta Bilingual 
Municipalities Association Membership fees of $1,100.00 per year 
beginning of 2026. 
 

Carried. 
 
 

11:35to 11:37 a.m. 
 

  Public Question and Answer Period: 
 
Nil. 
 
 

 8. Chief Administrative Officer’s Report: 
 

8.1. Action List from January 2025 Council Meetings 
741-25: Halisky That Smoky Lake County Council acknowledge Action List report 

from the January 2025, Council Meetings, as information. 
Carried. 

 
8.2. Action List from February 2025 Council Meetings 
742-25: Gawalko That Smoky Lake County Council accept Action List report from the 

February 2025, Council Meetings, as information. 
Carried. 

 
8.3. Government of Canada’s Enabling Accessibility Fund Information 
743-25: Halisky That Smoky Lake County Council acknowledge receipt of the 

information received in respect to the Government of Canada’s Enabling 
Accessibility Fund and bring this information forward to the future 
Strategic planning meeting on March 25th, 2025 and the April 24th, 2025 
Regular County Council Meeting, and send the information to 
surrounding Foundations.  

Carried. 
 

8.4. Alberta Community Partnership (ACP) program’s approved projects list 
744-25: Halisky  That Smoky Lake County Council acknowledge receipt of the 

information received in respect to the Alberta Community Partnership 
(ACP) program’s approved projects list for reference of successful 
applicants and eligible projects, to utilize as a resource when 
determining potential projects for the Smoky Lake Region and instruct 
administration to forward this information to the Strategic Planning 
meeting on March 25th, 2025. 
 

Carried. 
 

8.5. Funding Programs for Economic Development  
745-25: Halisky That Smoky Lake County Council acknowledge receipt of the 

information received in respect to Funding Programs for Economic 
Development, which lists various funding programs and opportunities, 
and link the information on the County’s “Scholarships & Funding” 
webpage to be promoted on social media to increase awareness and 
instruct administration to forward this information to the Strategic 
Planning meeting on March 25th, 2025. 
 
 

Carried. 
 

 9. Council Committee Reports: 



County Council Meeting          15895 
March 13, 2025 

 
 Nil. 

 
 

 10.    Correspondence: 
 

10.1. Joint Use Planning Agreements (JUPA) deadline extended to June 10, 2026 
746-25: Céré That Smoky Lake County acknowledge receipt of the letter from the 

Minister of Municipal Affairs, dated February 13, 2025, in respect to 
Joint Use Planning Agreements (JUPA) deadline extended from June 
10, 2025 to June 10, 2026, thought Ministerial Order No. MSD 004-25.  
 

Carried. 
 

10.2. Minister’s Awards for Municipal and Public Library Excellence (MAMPLE) 
747-25: Céré That Smoky Lake County acknowledge receipt of the letter from the 

Minister of Municipal Affairs, dated February 4, 2025, in respect to the 
Year-2025 Minister’s Awards for Municipal and Public Library 
Excellence (MAMPLE), with a deadline to apply of March 31, 2025, to 
be sent to its relevant parties. 
 

Carried. 
 

10.3. Elected Officials Education Program (EOEP) 
748-25: Céré That Smoky Lake County acknowledge receipt of the correspondence 

received from the Elected Officials Education Program (EOEP), 
announcing the Munis 101 course is available to learn about the 
foundations of serving on municipal council. 
 
 

Carried. 
 

10.4. Alberta Transportation and Economic Corridors - Hwy 28 Pavement Overlay 
749-25: Gawalko  
 
 

That Smoky Lake County acknowledge receipt and instruct 
administration to respond to and forward the letter dated February 4, 
2025, received from CAP Engineering, who has been retained by 
Alberta Transportation and Economic Corridors, for the Highway 28 
pavement overlay project to the Town of Smoky Lake; and agree to 
provide consent to the proposed access removal at Lot 11MSR, Block 6, 
Plan 8120751, along the Town of Smoky Lake, as shown below:  

 
 

Carried. 
 



County Council Meeting          15896 
March 13, 2025 

10.5. Federal Government agreements to Municipal Affairs 
750-25: Céré That Smoky Lake County acknowledge receipt of the letter from the 

Minister of Municipal Affairs, dated February 26, 2025, announcing 
municipalities will be required to submit information on all new Federal 
Government agreements to Municipal Affairs, effective April 1, 2025, 
and submit any of the said agreements as required in accordance with 
the Provincial Priorities Act, coming into force on April 1, 2025. 
 
 

Carried. 
 

10.6. Federal Government agreements to Municipal Affairs 
 That Smoky Lake County acknowledge receipt of the letter from the 

Minister of Municipal Affairs, dated February 27, 2025, announcing an 
increase of to the provincial budget for Local Government Fiscal 
Framework (LGFF) finding by 13%  
 

Carried. 
 

10.7. Event Poster for the local to Global Eastern Alberta Trade Corridor Forum 
751-25: Serben  That Smoky Lake County respectfully decline the invite to the Global 

Eastern Alberta Trade Corridor Forum event* dated April 23-25th.  
 

Carried. 
10.8. Warspite Foundation First Annual Country Fair Event Advertisement  
752-25: Serben That Smoky Lake County accept receipt of the information from 

Councilor Cere, Warspite Foundation’s 1st Annual Warspite Country 
Fair event dated June 14th, 2025; and share the information on social 
media and the events calendar.  
 

Carried. 
 

 11.    Information Releases: 
 

11.1. Information Releases to Council – January to February 2025 
753-25: Halisky  That Smoky Lake County file for information “Information Releases” 

sent to Council for the period of January to February 2025, listed as 
follows, be filed for information: 

 
Carried. 

 
 12.   Financial Reports: 

 
12.1. Financial Statements for the month of December 31st 2024- February 20th 2025 
754-25: Céré That Smoky Lake County’s Financial Statement, updated February 20th, 

2025, as prepared by the Finance Manager, be filed for information. 
 
 
 

Carried. 
 

12.2. Transfer to Operating Reserves  

 

Description of Information Released: Date Released: 
Municipal 

File #: 
Dart Tournament in Memory of Cathy & Tom Bullas - Thank You for Support January 8, 2025 1-130 
Smoky Lake Holubka Dancers - Thank You for Support in May 2024 January 8, 2025 7-74 
Town of Smoky Lake Council Committee Appointments 2024-2025 January 15, 2025 1-113 
Monthly Managers Reports - Dec. 2024 to Jan. 2025 January 16, 2025 N/A 
Thank you letter from Reeve to Dep. Chief Prosecutor for attending Mtg. January 17, 2025 2-82 
Thank you letter from Reeve to RCMP East District for attending Mtg. January 17, 2025 2-85 
Thank you letter from Reeve to local RCMP & VSU for attending Mtg. January 17, 2025 2-85 
Gas Alberta Interim Report Dec 31 2024 - Q2 FY2025 February 7, 2025 9-23 
Smoky Lake Agricultural Society – Financial Statements Year End 2024 February 14, 2025 7-93 
Alberta HUB – Sustainability Recommendation & Road Map Document February 18, 2025 19-57 
Monthly Managers Reports - Jan. 2025 to Feb. 2025 February 19, 2025 N/A 
Town of Smoky Lake Council Committee Appointments 2025 updated February 27, 2025 1-113 



County Council Meeting          15897 
March 13, 2025 

755-25: Halisky That Smoky Lake County Transfer $500.000.00 into Operating reserves 
and $3000.000 into Capital Reserves. 
 
 

 13.  Next Meeting(s): 
 

13.1. Reconfirm the Scheduled County Council Meeting Dates 
756-25: Serben That the next Smoky Lake County Council Meetings be reconfirmed as 

follows:  
Thursday, March 27, 2025, at 9:00 a.m. (Regular),  
Thursday, April 10 and 24, 2025, at 9:00 a.m. (Regular),  
Tuesday, April 22, 2025 at 9:00 AM Council Budget Meeting 
Thursday, May 8 and 22, 2025, at 9:00 a.m. (Regular), and 
Thursday, June 12 and 26, 2025, at 9:00 a.m. (Regular),  
to be held physically and/or virtually in County Council 
Chambers.  

 
Carried. 

 
Meeting Recessed  Meeting recessed for Lunch, time 12:17 p.m.   

 
 6. Municipal Planning Commission (MPC): 

 
Meeting Recessed The Council meeting was recessed at 1:00 p.m. to undertake a Municipal 

Planning Commission Meeting on a separate agenda with separate 
minutes. 
 

Meeting Reconvened The Council meeting reconvened on a call to order by the Reeve at 1:30 
p.m. in the physical or virtual presence of all Council Members, Chief 
Administrative Officer, Finance Manager, Municipal Clerk, Planning & 
Development Manager, Natural Gas Manager, Fire Chief, 
Communications Officer, GIS Operator, and 0 Members of the Public. 
 

 Delegation members, Aspen View Schools Superintendent, Constantine 
Kastrinos, and Trustee, Elohne Chizawsky, entered council chambers @ 
1:30pm 

 4. Delegation: 
 

4.1. Aspen View Schools Superintendent & Trustee 
 Present before Council from 1:30 p.m. to 2:08 p.m. was Aspen View 

Schools Superintendent, Constantine Kastrinos, and Trustee, Elohne 
Chizawsky, to provide the yearly update for municipal partners, 
including but not limited to the following information: 

        

 



County Council Meeting          15898 
March 13, 2025 

 

 
 

• Job shadowing/work experience  
• Possibly look at transportation for work experience to places like 

portage college  
• Boundary review process for school divisions in Smoky Lake 

County  
 
 

 
Meeting Recessed The Regular Council meeting was recessed at 2:09 p.m. to undertake a 

Municipal Planning Commission Meeting on a separate agenda with 
separate minutes. 
 

Meeting Reconvened  The Regular Council meeting was reconvened at 2:46 p.m. 
 14. Executive Session: 

 
14.1. Legal Land Issue - Potential Land Purchase 
257-25: Gawalko  
 

That Smoky Lake County Council go into Executive Session in the 
presence of all Council and Chief Administrative Officer (CAO) to 
discuss a Legal Land Issue: in respect to potential land purchase, under 
the authority of the FOIP Act Section 16: Third party business interests 
and Section 27: Privileged information, time 2:47 p.m. 
 

Carried. 
 

258-25: Céré That Smoky Lake County Council go out of Executive Session, time 
4:15 p.m. 

Carried. 
 

 15.  ADJOURNMENT: 
 

259-25: Gawalko  
 

That the Smoky Lake County Council Meeting of March 13, 2025, be 
adjourned, 4:16 p.m. 

Carried. 
 

 
  
 
 

________________________________ 
   REEVE 

  
 S E A L 

  ________________________________ 
 CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 



Municipal Planning Commission   185 
March 13, 2025  

SMOKY LAKE COUNTY 
  

Minutes of the Municipal Planning Commission meeting from 
Thursday, March 13, 2025, held in Smoky Lake County Council 
Chambers as well as virtually online. 

 
The meeting was Called to Order at 1:00 PM p.m. by the Chief 
Administrative Officer of Smoky Lake County, Kevin Lucas, in the presence 
of the following persons: 
  
Attendance:  
Dan Gawalko Councillor Div. 1  Present in Chambers 
Linda Fenerty Councillor Div. 2  Absent 
Dominique Céré, Deputy Reeve Councillor Div. 3  Present in Chambers 
Lorne Halisky Councillor Div. 4  Present in Chambers 
Jered Serben, Reeve Councillor Div. 5  Present in Chambers 
Kevin Lucas CAO Present in Chambers 
Jordan Ruegg P&D Manager  Present Virtually 
Brenda Adamson Finance Manager  Present Virtually 
Daniel Moric Nat. Gas Manager Present Virtually 
Evonne Zukiwski Comm. Manager  Present Virtually 
Chris Minailo PW  Manager  Present in Chambers 
Meaghan Andreychuk Recording Secretary Present in Chambers 

    2 Members of the Public virtually present and 0 physically present. 
    7 other County Staff Members virtually present & 1 physically present. 
     
 Election of Chairperson 
 The Chief Administrative Officer called first (1) time for nominations for 

Chairperson. 
 

MPC25.01: Lucas That Councillor Dominique Céré be nominated as the Chairperson of 
the Municipal Planning Commission. 
 
The Chief Administrative Officer called second (2) time for nominations 
for Chairperson. 
 
The Chief Administrative Officer called third (3) time for nominations 
for Chairperson. 
 
HEARING NO FURTHER NOMINATIONS. 
 

 The Chief Administrative Officer declared Nominations for Chairperson 
Ceased. 

 
 Ms. Dominique Céré was declared elected by acclamation by the Chief 

Administrative Officer as the Chairperson of the Municipal Planning 
Commission for the ensuing year and assumed the Chair. 
 

 Election of Vice-Chairperson 
 The Chairperson called first (1) time for nominations for Vice-

Chairperson. 
 

MPC25.02: Céré That Councillor Dan Gawalko be nominated as the Vice-Chairperson 
of the Municipal Planning Commission. 
 
The Chairperson called second (2) time for nominations for 
Chairperson. 
 
The Chairperson called third (3) time for nominations for Chairperson. 
 
HEARING NO FURTHER NOMINATIONS. 
 

3.2



Municipal Planning Commission   186 
March 13, 2025  

 The Chairperson declared Nominations for Vice-Chairperson Ceased. 
 

 Mr. Dan Gawalko was declared elected by acclamation by the 
Chairperson as the Vice-Chairperson of the Municipal Planning 
Commission for the ensuing year.  
 

 2.0  ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

MPC25.03: Halisky That the Agenda for the Municipal Planning Commission meeting for 
Thursday, March 13, 2025, be adopted as presented. 
   

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 

 3.0  MINUTES 

MPC25.04: Serben That the Minutes of Municipal Planning Commission meeting held on 
Thursday, September 12, 2024, be adopted as presented. 

CARRIED. 
 

 4.0  REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 

4.1 Development Permits to be Considered: 
 
MPC25.05: Gawalko 4.1.1 DP-005-25: Natural Resource Extraction & Processing Facility 

(Sand & Gravel) 
 
That the Municipal Planning Commission APPROVE Development 
Permit No. 005-25: NW 11-61-18-W4M, for the development of a 
Natural Resource Extraction/Processing Facility (Sand & Gravel), 
subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. The proposed Natural Resource Extraction/Processing Facility 
(Sand & Gravel) shall be developed, constructed and sited as 
per “Drawing No. 4-9: Mine Sequencing Plan”, dated August 
26, 2023, attached to, and forming part of, this Development 
Permit, and not to exceed 5.03 hectares (12.43 acres) in size. 
Any expansion of the proposed Natural Resource 
Extraction/Processing Facility (Sand & Gravel) shall require a 
subsequent Development Permit to be issued by the 
Development Authority for Smoky Lake County. 

2. The Applicant/Developer shall be required to enter into a 
Development Agreement with Smoky Lake County prior to the 
issuance of a Development Permit for the proposed Natural 
Resource Extraction/Processing Facility (Sand & Gravel). 

3. The Applicant/Developer shall obtain an Aggregate Extraction 
Business Licence, pursuant to Smoky Lake County Bylaw No. 
1456-24: Aggregate Extraction Business Licence Bylaw, and 
amendments thereto, and shall comply with all provisions of 
said Bylaw, including, but not limited to, providing Smoky Lake 
County with quarterly aggregate reporting and payment of 
Business Licence fees. 

4. The Applicant/Developer shall pay to Smoky Lake County, in 
accordance with Smoky Lake County Bylaw No. 1431-23: 
Smoky Lake County Planning and Development Fees Bylaw, 
Development Permit fees of $750.00/acre ($750.00 x 12.43 
acres = $9,322.50), prior to the issuance of this Development 
Permit. 



Municipal Planning Commission   187 
March 13, 2025  

5. The Applicant/Developer shall be required to enter into a Haul 
Road Agreement with Smoky Lake County prior to the 
issuance of this Development Permit. 

6. The Applicant/Developer shall obtain a Historical Resources 
Act Approval from the Ministry of Arts, Culture and Status of 
Women prior to the issuance of this Development Permit. 

7. This Development Permit will expire ten (10) years from the 
date of issuance. 

8. The Applicant/Developer shall comply with all requirements of 
Alberta Environment and Protected Areas, including any 
registrations, permits, approvals and reclamation 
requirements. 

9. Reclamation and rehabilitation of the subject lands shall be in 
accordance with the Alberta Environmental Protection and 
Enhancement Act (EPEA) and the Code of Practice for Pits. 

10. Tree and brush removal on the subject lands shall take place 
only during the approved period of July 31 to April 15, as 
required by the Alberta Wildlife Act and the federal Migratory 
Birds Convention Act. 

11. Any burning of vegetation on the subject lands will require the 
Applicant/Developer to obtain a Burn Permit from Smoky Lake 
County’s Fire Chief, or his designate, prior to commencement 
of burning. 

12. The Applicant/Developer shall submit a Fire Safety Plan to the 
satisfaction of Smoky Lake County’s Fire Chief. 

13. All equipment and activities related to mining, excavating and 
crushing operations shall be located within, and take place in, 
areas approved for gravel extraction by this Development 
Permit. 

14. Hours of Operation shall be as follows: 
a. Crushing Operations: 7:00 a.m. – 9:00 p.m., Monday 

through Saturday inclusive. No crushing shall be permitted 
on Sundays and Statutory Holidays. 

b. On-Site Development Operations (extraction, pit 
development, reclamation & tree removal): 7:00 a.m. – 
9:00 p.m., Monday to Saturday inclusive. No on-site 
development operation shall be permitted on Sundays and 
Statutory Holidays. 

c. Hauling: 7:00 a.m. – 9:00 p.m., Monday to Saturday 
inclusive. Hauling shall not be permitted on Sundays and 
Statutory Holidays. 

15. The Applicant/Developer shall ensure that dust and noise 
control measures are undertaken so as to prevent such effects 
from becoming a nuisance to adjacent landowners. In this 
regard, stockpiles shall be positioned to act as a sound barrier 
and the Applicant/Developer shall utilize any and all methods 
of minimizing the noise created from machinery and pit 
activities wherever possible. The Applicant/Developer shall be 
required to provide dust control upon request by, and to the 
satisfaction of, Smoky Lake County. 

16. The Applicant/Developer shall keep the area subject to the 
Development Permit in a clean and tidy manner, free from 
rubbish and non-aggregate debris. 



Municipal Planning Commission   188 
March 13, 2025  

17. The Applicant/Developer shall install and maintain appropriate 
traffic and safety signage on and about the subject lands and 
adjacent road accesses. 

18. Accesses and haul routes into extraction areas shall be 
located away from residential areas wherever possible. 

19. No development, disturbance or alteration of a surface 
waterbody is permitted without first obtaining the necessary 
approvals under the Water Act and from the Department of 
Fisheries and Oceans, where applicable. Evidence of a Water 
Act approval or licence must be provided to the Development 
Authority for Smoky Lake County in cases where a surface 
waterbody is altered or disturbed.  

20. All reasonable measures shall be taken by the 
Applicant/Developer to control erosion in the areas approved 
for sand and gravel extraction. 

21. The Applicant/Developer shall obtain any and all approvals, 
permits, authorizations, certificates and licenses, from any and 
all agencies, departments and authorities as may be required.  

22. The use of engine-retarding brakes shall not be permitted 
within ½ mile of a residence on municipally-controlled roads. 
 

CARRIED. 
 

MPC25.06: Halisky That Smoky Lake County Council go into Executive Session in the 
presence of all Council and Chief Administrative Officer (CAO) to 
discuss a Legal Land Issue: in respect to potential land purchase, 
under the authority of the FOIP Act Section 16: Third party business 
interests and Section 27: Privileged information, time 1:22 p.m. 

MPC25.07: Halisky  That Smoky Lake County Council go out of Executive Session, time 
1:29 p.m. 

 The Municipal Planning Commission meeting was recessed at 1:30 
p.m. to resume the Regular County Council Meeting on a separate 
agenda with separate minutes. 
 
 

 The Municipal Planning Commission meeting was reconvened at 2:20 
p.m. 

MPC25.08: Serben That Smoky Lake County Council go into Executive Session in the 
presence of all Council and Chief Administrative Officer (CAO) to 
discuss a Legal Land Issue: in respect to potential land purchase, 
under the authority of the FOIP Act Section 16: Third party business 
interests and Section 27: Privileged information, time 2:20 p.m. 

MPC25.09: Halisky  That Smoky Lake County Council go out of Executive Session, time 
2:35 p.m. 

MPC25.10: Gawalko 
 
 

4.1.2 DP-006-25: Natural Resource Extraction & Processing Facility 
(Sand & Gravel) 
 
That the Municipal Planning Commission APPROVE Development 
Permit No. 006-25: S1/2 15-61-18-W4M, for the development of a 
Natural Resource Extraction/Processing Facility (Sand & Gravel), 
subject to the following conditions with the amendments to number 5 
with the public works manager   
 

1. The proposed Natural Resource Extraction/Processing Facility 
(Sand & Gravel) shall be developed, constructed and sited as 
per “Drawing No. 4-9: Mine Sequencing Plan”, dated August 
26, 2023, attached to, and forming part of, this Development 
Permit, and not to exceed 5.03 hectares (12.43 acres) in size. 
Any expansion of the proposed Natural Resource 



Municipal Planning Commission   189 
March 13, 2025  

Extraction/Processing Facility (Sand & Gravel) shall require a 
subsequent Development Permit to be issued by the 
Development Authority for Smoky Lake County. 

2. The Applicant/Developer shall be required to enter into a 
Development Agreement with Smoky Lake County prior to the 
issuance of a Development Permit for the proposed Natural 
Resource Extraction/Processing Facility (Sand & Gravel). 

3. The Applicant/Developer shall obtain an Aggregate Extraction 
Business Licence, pursuant to Smoky Lake County Bylaw No. 
1456-24: Aggregate Extraction Business Licence Bylaw, and 
amendments thereto, and shall comply with all provisions of 
said Bylaw, including, but not limited to, providing Smoky Lake 
County with quarterly aggregate reporting and payment of 
Business Licence fees. 

4. The Applicant/Developer shall pay to Smoky Lake County, in 
accordance with Smoky Lake County Bylaw No. 1431-23: 
Smoky Lake County Planning and Development Fees Bylaw, 
Development Permit fees of $750.00/acre ($750.00 x 66.93 
acres = $50,197.50), prior to the issuance of this Development 
Permit. 

5. The Applicant/Developer shall be required to enter into a Haul 
Road Agreement with Public works manager of Smoky Lake 
County prior to the issuance of this Development Permit. 

6. The Applicant/Developer shall obtain a Historical Resources 
Act Approval from the Ministry of Arts, Culture and Status of 
Women prior to the issuance of this Development Permit. 

7. This Development Permit will expire ten (10) years from the 
date of issuance. 

8. The Applicant/Developer shall comply with all requirements of 
Alberta Environment and Protected Areas, including any 
registrations, permits, approvals and reclamation 
requirements. 

9. Reclamation and rehabilitation of the subject lands shall be in 
accordance with the Alberta Environmental Protection and 
Enhancement Act (EPEA) and the Code of Practice for Pits. 

10. Tree and brush removal on the subject lands shall take place 
only during the approved period of July 31 to April 15, as 
required by the Alberta Wildlife Act and the federal Migratory 
Birds Convention Act. 

11. Any burning of vegetation on the subject lands will require the 
Applicant/Developer to obtain a Burn Permit from Smoky Lake 
County’s Fire Chief, or his designate, prior to commencement 
of burning. 

12. The Applicant/Developer shall submit a Fire Safety Plan to the 
satisfaction of Smoky Lake County’s Fire Chief. 

13. All equipment and activities related to mining, excavating and 
crushing operations shall be located within, and take place in, 
areas approved for gravel extraction by this Development 
Permit. 

14. Hours of Operation shall be as follows: 
a. Crushing Operations: 7:00 a.m. – 9:00 p.m., Monday 

through Saturday inclusive. No crushing shall be permitted 
on Sundays and Statutory Holidays. 

b. On-Site Development Operations (extraction, pit 
development, reclamation & tree removal): 7:00 a.m. – 



Municipal Planning Commission   190 
March 13, 2025  

9:00 p.m., Monday to Saturday inclusive. No on-site 
development operation shall be permitted on Sundays and 
Statutory Holidays. 

c. Hauling: 7:00 a.m. – 9:00 p.m., Monday to Saturday 
inclusive. Hauling shall not be permitted on Sundays and 
Statutory Holidays. 

15. The Applicant/Developer shall ensure that dust and noise 
control measures are undertaken so as to prevent such effects 
from becoming a nuisance to adjacent landowners. In this 
regard, stockpiles shall be positioned to act as a sound barrier 
and the Applicant/Developer shall utilize any and all methods 
of minimizing the noise created from machinery and pit 
activities wherever possible. The Applicant/Developer shall be 
required to provide dust control upon request by, and to the 
satisfaction of, Smoky Lake County. 

16. The Applicant/Developer shall keep the area subject to the 
Development Permit in a clean and tidy manner, free from 
rubbish and non-aggregate debris. 

17. The Applicant/Developer shall install and maintain appropriate 
traffic and safety signage on and about the subject lands and 
adjacent road accesses. 

18. Accesses and haul routes into extraction areas shall be 
located away from residential areas wherever possible. 

19. No development, disturbance or alteration of a surface 
waterbody is permitted without first obtaining the necessary 
approvals under the Water Act and from the Department of 
Fisheries and Oceans, where applicable. Evidence of a Water 
Act approval or licence must be provided to the Development 
Authority for Smoky Lake County in cases where a surface 
waterbody is altered or disturbed.  

20. All reasonable measures shall be taken by the 
Applicant/Developer to control erosion in the areas approved 
for sand and gravel extraction. 

21. The Applicant/Developer shall obtain any and all approvals, 
permits, authorizations, certificates and licences, from any and 
all agencies, departments and authorities as may be required.  

22. The use of engine-retarding brakes shall not be permitted 
within ½ mile of a residence on municipally-controlled roads. 
 

CARRIED. 
 

MPC25.11: Serben 4.1.3 DP-004-25: Recreational Use (Archery Range) 
 
That the Municipal Planning Commission APPROVE Development 
Permit No. 004-25: PLAN 0627587, BLOCK 1, LOT 1, for the 
development of a Recreational Use (outdoor archery range), 
subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. The proposed outdoor archery range shall be sited and 
constructed as per the Site Plan, dated January 30, 2025, 
attached to, and forming part of, this Development Permit, and 
shall conform to the following setbacks: 
Minimum Front Yard Setback (from property line adjacent to 
RGE RD 190): 7.62 meters (65.0 feet). 
Minimum Rear Yard Setback: (from property line adjacent to 
property to the east): 20.0 meters (25.0 feet). 



Municipal Planning Commission   191 
March 13, 2025  

Minimum Side Yard Setback: 18.5 meters (60.0 feet). 
Minimum Side Yard Setback: 18.5 meters (60.0 feet). 

2. The Developer/Applicant shall ensure that a minimum 
separation of 90cm and 1.25m for wheelchair athletes is 
provided for each shooting lane. 

3. The Developer/Applicant shall ensure that a 3.0m safety zone 
is established behind the shooting line. 

4. The Developer/Applicant shall ensure that the shooting line is 
clearly and visibly marked. The demarcation lines must cross 
the shooting area’s length and width and must outline the 
shooting lanes. 

5. The Developer/Applicant shall ensure that the archery range 
is bounded by a fence with a minimum 4 foot height. 

6. The Developer/Applicant shall ensure that appropriate berms 
and/or backstopping is installed behind targets, to the 
satisfaction of the Development Authority. The berms and 
backstopping must be high enough to stop arrows that have 
just missed the top of the butts at 90m. 

7. The Developer/Applicant shall ensure that the waiting areas 
and observation areas are separated and delineated from the 
shooting area. 

8. The Developer/Applicant shall obtain approval for the 
proposed approaches from the Smoky Lake County Road 
Foreman or his designate. 

9. The Developer/Applicant shall install appropriate warning 
signage, in sufficient quantities and locations, to the 
satisfaction of the Development Authority, informing the public 
of an operating archery range.  

10. During operation of the archery range, the 
Developer/Applicant shall ensure that a certified Range Safety 
Officer is present at all times. 

11. During construction, the Developer shall keep the site in a 
clean and tidy manner, free from rubbish and non-aggregate 
debris. 

12. The Developer/Applicant shall be required to obtain any and 
all necessary permits, approvals, licenses and authorizations 
from any and all agencies, departments and authorities as may 
be required. This includes obtaining the relevant Safety Codes 
Act Permits (Building, Gas, Plumbing, Electrical and Private 
Sewage Disposal System). 

CARRIED. 
 

 5.0 ISSUES FOR INFORMATION 
5.1 Nil. 

 6.0 CORRESPONDENCE 
6.1 Nil. 

 7.0 DELEGATION 
7.1 Nil. 

 NEXT MEETING 

 The next Municipal Planning Commission Meeting will be at the call of 
Chairperson and Public Notice of the next meeting be provided at least 
24 hours in advance in accordance with the Municipal Government Act, 



Municipal Planning Commission   192 
March 13, 2025  

RSA 200, cM-26.1 s195, by posting the information on the Smoky Lake 
County website. 
 

 8.0 ADJOURNMENT 
 

MPC25.12: Serben That the Municipal Planning Commission Meeting of March 13, 2025, 
adjourn at 2:46 p.m. 

CARRIED. 
       
 
 
 
 
 
        __________________________ 
        Dominique Céré, Chairperson 
 
        S E A L 
        ___________________________ 
        Kevin Lucas, CAO 



1/2/2025

1

FAMILY & COMMUNITY 
SUPPORT SERVICES

SMOKY LAKE REGION

PROVINCIAL FCSS 

PRIORITIES 

.

The Government of Alberta's prevention framework identifies five key priorities:

1. Homelessness and Housing Insecurity

2. Mental Health and Addictions

3. Employment Challenges

4. Family and Sexual Violence Across the Lifespan

5. Aging Well in Community

Local FCSS programs act as a bridge between provincial priorities and 

community-based prevention efforts by adopting the following strategies:

 Promote active community engagement

 Foster a sense of belonging

 Encourage social inclusion

 Build healthy relationships

 Improve access to social supports

 Strengthen resilience through skill development

Watch this short video to learn more about FCSS's history and work in Alberta.  PLAY

2

4.1



1/2/2025

2

TOWN OF SMOKY LAKE FCSS

ABOUT US

Vision

Our community, united and empowered, strives for a positive, healthy, and 

connected future. 

Mission

The Town of Smoky Lake Family and Community Support Services connects 

individuals and families to valuable resources and provides impactful programs 

that promote well-being.

4

Board of Directors

FCSS is supported by an Advisory Board of Directors, whose members bring 

a range of perspectives and the community ’s voice to the table. With their 

guidance, we aim to better serve the people of Smoky Lake.

Board Composition

This dedicated team includes a Chair, Vice-Chair, and 9 Members at Large, 

7 members representing the town and 4 from the county.



1/2/2025

3

COMMUNITY CAPACITY
DEVELOPMENT

UNIVERSAL PROGRAMS & SERVICES

 System Navigation, Referral Services

 Canadian Volunteer Income Tax Program (CVITP)

 Food Basket Program

 Annual Community Showcase

 Fostering Volunteerism 

 Interagency Connection (reoccurring op mech)

 Events (Truth & Reconciliation Day, Canada Day, Family Day)

 Monthly Community Newsletter

ON THE HORIZON…

 Community Needs Assessment

 Subsidized In-Person Counselling

5

SENIORS’ AND OLDER ADULTS

PROGRAMS & SERVICES

 Seniors Benefits: System Navigation Support & Referrals

 Senior Transportation: Drive Happiness

 Reducing Isolation through Technology: Cyber Seniors 

 Seniors’ Events: Annual Seniors Week Celebration

 Men’s Shed: Supporting positive mental health in aging men

 Workshops & Educational Guest Speakers

ON THE HORIZON…

 Meals on Wheels: Reestablishing and expanding meal delivery service

 Senior Supports: Lawn mowing and snow shoveling

 Winter Programming: Increasing activities to reduce isolation

6



1/2/2025

4

FAMILY, CHILDREN & YOUTH

UNIVERSAL PROGRAMS & SERVICES

 Youth Training (Babysitting, Home Alone, Cyber Safety)

 Regional Youth Council (age 12-19 years)

ON THE HORIZON…

 Increased Programming for Children Aged 7-12

 Youth Centre and Expansion of Youth Programs

Family Resource Network (FRN)

 Operates on a Hub & Spoke model (*refer to slide 8)

 Supports families with children ages 0-18, promoting 

safety, resilience, and well-being for children, youth, 

and their caregivers

 Through programs and events, families are connected 

to their community to strengthen natural supports 

and supportive connections

7

RURAL CONNECTIONS FAMILY RESOURCE NETWORK

8

Programs aim to support the holistic well-

being of children and youth - social, 

physical, emotional, cognitive, and spiritual 

- helping them achieve their full 

developmental potential.

Program Examples:

• Youth Council, Community Helpers

• Workshops/Activities (ie. Paint with the 

Greats, Crafts in the Park, etc.) 

Programs aim to support the holistic well-

being of children and youth - social, 

physical, emotional, cognitive, and spiritual 

- helping them achieve their full 

developmental potential.

Program Examples:

• GLOW, Big Book Journal

• Workshops/Activities (ie. Monday Drop-In 

Session, etc.) 

The Home Visitation program offers in-home 

support for families with youth ages 7-18.

Focus Areas:

•Building healthy relationships

•Strengthening attachment

•Encouraging positive discipline

•Providing mentoring

•Developing life skills

•Supporting child development age

No need to figure out where to 

make the referral. Call the 

Hub Services Coordinator.

The Home Visitation program offers in-home 

support for families with children from birth to 

age six.

Focus Areas:

•Encouraging positive parent-child relationships

•Enhancing parenting knowledge and skills

•Supporting healthy pregnancies and child 

development

•Assisting families in accessing both formal and 

informal resources and services



1/2/2025

5

FCSS 

IN OUR REGION

TOWN OF 
SMOKY LAKE

SMOKY LAKE
COUNTY

VILLAGE OF
WASKATENAU

VILLAGE OF
VILNA

SINGLE-MUNICIPALITY FCSS STRUCTURE

Direct Programming 

Inc ludes FCSS and FRN 

Fami ly School Liaison FTE

Grant Funds to Partners

Fami ly School Liaison FTE 

Programming ( in  p a r tne rships  wi th  

the  Anne  Chorne y Publ i c  L ibra ry ,  Ho ly  
Fami ly  Ca tho l ic  Scho o l  &  t he  Se nio r  
C i t iz en  Asso cia t io n)  

Fami ly School Liaison FTE

Direct Programming v ia  Library

Fiscal Management

1x FTE FCSS Di rector

2x PT FRN Program Special ists

Grants  received (past  3 years)

 Alberta for  Healthy Communi ties  
In i t iat ive 

 New Hori zon

 Rural Mental Health  Animators  

Partnerships

 Drive Happiness ,  Cyber  Seniors

 Metis  Nation of AB (Truth & 
Reconc i l iat ion Annual Event)

 Communi ty Helpers  Program 
(AHS)

Fiscal Management Fiscal Management

Grants received (past  3 years)

 Celebrate Canada Day Grant 

 Volunteer  Alberta Grant

Partnerships

 Smoky Lake Region Junior  Fi re  
Fighting  Camp

Fiscal Management

PT Di rect Programming w/ 
Library Staff

Grants received (past  3 years)

 Celebrate Canada Grant 
( Indigenous  Peoples  Day,  
Mult i cu ltural ism Day& Canada 
Day)

 OROS Grant (Northern Lights)

D
e
li

v
e
ry

 

M
o

d
e
l

S
ta

ff
in

g
G

ra
n

ts
 &

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s

By enhancing librarian-led direct 

programming, the Village of Vilna 

has seen improvements in program 

delivery, including the launch of a 

monthly community newsletter. 

There is a recognized need for 

community support through system 

navigation and referral services.

There is a recognized need for community 

support through system navigation and 

referral services.

10



1/2/2025

6

MULTI-MUNICIPALITY 
OPPORTUNITY

ENHANCED PROGRAMMING CAPACITY

Combining resources enables FCSS programs to deliver 

enhanced regional support  and streamline services 

effectively.

INCREASED FRN ACCESSIBILITY 

Enhance access to Family Resource Network (FRN) 

services,  ensur ing more famil ies benefit  from localized 

programs.

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

Regional development brings benefits to each 

part icipating community.

11

KEY BENEFITS

FUNDING STREAMS

Increase eligibi li ty for  larger  grants and strategic 

partnerships, maximizing the impact of shared goals.

Regional FCSS Director

Strategy, Funding & 
Partnerships for FCSS & FRN

Community Services 
Coordinator

Seniors Advocate 

Specialist

12

Advisory Board of 
Directors

Equal Representation of 
E.O. & Members at Large

PROPOSED 2026-2027

Perm ane nt  Part -T im e  

(0 . 5FTE)  Pos i t io n 

Pro v ide  syst em  nav igat io n  

sup p or t  and  ho l is t ic  se rv ice  

re f e r ra ls  f o r  com m unity  

m e m be rs ,  along  wit h  

d eve lo p ing  co m m unit y  

p ro gram s,  d e l ive r ing  e ve nt s,  

o f f e r ing  ad m in ist rat ive  

sup p or t ,  and  assi st i ng  

re s id ents  w i th  so cia l  

d eve lo pm e nt  and  re fe r ra l  

se rv ice s.

Pe rm ane nt  Part -T im e

(0 . 5FTE)  Pos i t io n 

C re at e s and  p ro m o te s 

o pp o rt un i t ie s that  em p o we r  

sen io rs  t o  l i ve  ind e pe nde nt ly .  

Thi s  inc lud e s de ve lop ing  and  

im p le m e nt ing re le vant  p ro gram s,  

p ro v id ing  in fo rm at ion  and  

re f e r ra ls  t o  se n io rs  and  the i r  

fam i l ie s,  and  re se archin g  ne ed s ,  

t re nd s,  and  id eas  t hat  sup po r t  

sen io r  we l l-be ing .

Pe rm ane nt  Part -T im e

(0 . 5FTE)  Pos i t io n 

Des igns and  d e l ive rs  p ro gram s 

fo r  ch i ld re n and  yo ut h (ages  

0-12)  f o cuse d  o n b ui ld ing  

soc ia l  sk i l l s ,  p rob le m -so lv ing ,  

com m unicat io n,  e m po we rm e nt ,  

and  st re ngthe nin g  care g ive r-

chi ld  re lat io nsh ip s

Pe rm ane nt  Part -T im e

(0 . 5FTE)  Pos i t io n 

Deve lo ps  and  im p le m ent s 

p ro gram s that  f oste r  

le ade rsh ip ,  l i f e  sk i l l s ,  and  

p e rso nal  g ro wth  f o r  yo ut h 

age d  12-18.  Focus areas  

inc lude  lead ersh ip  

d eve lo pm e nt ,  e ssent ial  

' ad ul t ing '  sk i l l s ,  and  yo uth-

cente re d  p ro gram m ing that  

e nco urage s se l f -conf id en ce ,  

p ro b le m-so lv ing ,  and  

com m uni ty  e ngagem e nt .

Family School Liaison Worker 

(FSLW) 

Short Term: 

• Maintain current contract

• Aspenview shares reporting 

on outcome measures

Short Term: Across 2025, 

Partner with Vilna Librarian to 

deliver regional programs and 

expand presence.  Work 

towards creating a new role to 

support these efforts.
Seek incremental Grant Opportunities 

to support role creation.

Child Program 
Specialist

(Ages 0-12)

Youth Program 
Specialist

(Ages 13-18)

Family & Community Support Services Family Resource Network



1/2/2025

7

Regional FCSS Director

Strategy, Funding & 
Partnerships for FCSS & FRN

Community Services 
Coordinator

Seniors Advocate 

Specialist

13

Advisory Board of 
Directors

Equal Representation of 
E.O. & Members at Large

PROPOSED 2028-2029

Perm ane nt  FT

(1  FTE)  Po si t io n  

Pro v ide  syst em  nav igat io n  

sup p or t  and  ho l is t ic  se rv ice  

re f e r ra ls  f o r  com m unity  

m e m be rs ,  along  wit h  

d eve lo p ing  co m m unit y  

p ro gram s,  d e l ive r ing  e ve nt s,  

o f f e r ing  ad m in ist rat ive  

sup p or t ,  and  assi st i ng  

re s id ents  w i th  so cia l  

d eve lo pm e nt  and  re fe r ra l  

se rv ice s.

Pe rm ane nt  FT

(1  FTE)  Po si t io n  

C re at e s and  p ro m o te s 

o pp o rt un i t ie s that  em p o we r  

sen io rs  t o  l i ve  ind e pe nde nt ly .  

Thi s  inc lud e s de ve lop ing  and  

im p le m e nt ing re le vant  p ro gram s,  

p ro v id ing  in fo rm at ion  and  

re f e r ra ls  t o  se n io rs  and  the i r  

fam i l ie s,  and  re se archin g  ne ed s ,  

t re nd s,  and  id eas  t hat  sup po r t  

sen io r  we l l-be ing .

Pe rm ane nt  Part -T im e

(1  FTE)  Po si t io n  

Des igns and  d e l ive rs  p ro gram s 

fo r  ch i ld re n and  yo ut h (ages  

0-12)  f o cuse d  o n b ui ld ing  

soc ia l  sk i l l s ,  p rob le m -so lv ing ,  

com m unicat io n,  e m po we rm e nt ,  

and  st re ngthe nin g  care g ive r-

chi ld  re lat io nsh ip s

Pe rm ane nt  FT

(1  FTE)  Po si t io n  

Develops  and implements  

programs that foster  

leadership,  l i fe  ski l ls ,  and 

personal  growth for  youth 

aged 12-18.  Focus  areas  

inc lude leadership 

development,  essential  

'adult ing '  ski l ls ,  and 

youth-centered 

programming that 

encourages  self-

confidence,  problem-

solv ing ,  and communi ty 

engagement.

Child Program 
Specialist

(Ages 0-12)

Youth Program 
Specialist

(Ages 13-18)

Family & Community Support Services Family Resource Network

Family School Liaison Worker (FSLW) 

Long Term: 

• Negotiate a funding arrangement 

between FCSS and Aspenview to ensure 

the sustainability of the FSLW program, 

while aiming for closer alignment with 

practices in other regions.

GROWTH STRATEGY

How we’ll scale in the future 

B OAR D  O F  

D I REC TO RS

 Seek out new grant opportunities to diversify funding 

sources.

 Use a forward-looking annual budget forecast for efficient 

fiscal oversight.

 Engage staff through leadership practices and implement 

effective benefits to retain top talent.

CO M M U N I T Y  

AWAR E N E S S

 Regional Community Assessment; evidence-based responses to 

social needs

 Awareness of supportive services; regional FCSS website/social 

media/presence at community events

 Inter-agency collaboration w/ regional lens (Schools, RCMP, etc)

PART N E R SH I P S

 Identify new partnership opportunities

 Effective partner-relationship management; fostering results and 

funding

 Leverage the power of the FCSS & FRN Network to acquire best 

practices, tools and resources to expedite local efforts

20XX

F U N D I N G ,  B U D G E T  

&  S TAF F

 New board composition: equal representation of Executive 

Officers and Members at Large

 Updated bylaws to support a multi-municipality model

 Ongoing communication to all municipalities in the region

14



1/2/2025

8

QUESTIONS?

4.2.1



4.2.1











4.2



 Request for Decision (RFD) 
 

Meeting Date: Thursday, March 27, 2025    Agenda Item: #  
 

Topic:  Bylaw No. 1477-25: A Bylaw to amend Land Use Bylaw No. 1272-14 to Redistrict the 

lands legally described as all that portion of NW-27-60-14-W4M which lies to the east 

of the east limit of Road Plan 4134LZ, from Rural Industrial (M2) District to Agriculture 

(AG) District; and to amend Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 1249-12 to 

Reclassify the lands legally described as all that portion of NW-27-60-14-W4M which 

lies to the east of the east limit of Road Plan 4134LZ, from Commercial Area to 

Agriculture Area. 
  

Presented By: Planning & Development Services 

Recommendation: That Smoky Lake County Council give First Reading to Bylaw No. 1477-25 

and to schedule a Public Hearing on said Bylaw, to be held on Thursday, April 24, 2025, at 

9:15 a.m., and to advertise said Public Hearing in accordance with the Municipal Government 

Act, in the Redwater Review and on the County’s website. 
 

Background: On March 17, 2025, an application was received by administration to amend Land 

Use Bylaw No. 1272-14, to redistrict said lands from Rural Industrial (M2) District to Agriculture 

(AG) District and to amend Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 1249-12 to reclassify the 

said lands from Commercial Area to Agriculture Area. The applicant proposes to construct a 

single detached dwelling and hobby farm, both of which are neither Permitted Uses nor 

Discretionary Uses under the existing Rural Industrial District. By redistricting said lands to 

Agriculture District, these uses will be permissible. 
 

Benefits: Provide an opportunity for a landowner to construct a dwelling, providing the County 

with additional assessment. 

Disadvantages: Loss of lands districted to allow for rural industrial uses. 

Alternatives: Council may propose changes to Bylaw 1477-25 or defeat said Bylaw.  

Financial Implications: Costs of advertising Public Hearing and mailing of notices to adjacent 

landowners (approximately $700).  

Legislation: Part 17, Municipal Government Act, M-26 RSA 2000 

Intergovernmental: Nil. 

Strategic Alignment: Proactivity in Development. 

Enclosure(s):  

• Enclosure #1: Application to Amend LUB & Certificate of Title 

• Enclosure #2: Bylaw 1477-25 

• Enclosure #3: Land Use Bylaw No. 1272-14 Section 8.2 (AG District) & Section 8.11 (M2 District) 

• Enclosure #4: Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 1249-12 Section 4.1 (Agriculture Policy) 

and Section 4.4 (Commercial Policy) 

 

Approved by the CAO: ____________________.    Date: ____________________.   

7.1



 

This form legislated under Policy Statement No. 01-27: County Council Meetings Request for Decision  Page 2 of 29 
 

Enclosure #1: Application to Amend LUB & Certificate of Title 

 



 

This form legislated under Policy Statement No. 01-27: County Council Meetings Request for Decision  Page 3 of 29 
 



 

This form legislated under Policy Statement No. 01-27: County Council Meetings Request for Decision  Page 4 of 29 
 



 

This form legislated under Policy Statement No. 01-27: County Council Meetings Request for Decision  Page 5 of 29 
 

 

 

 



 

This form legislated under Policy Statement No. 01-27: County Council Meetings Request for Decision  Page 6 of 29 
 

Enclosure #2: Bylaw 1477-25 

 



 

This form legislated under Policy Statement No. 01-27: County Council Meetings Request for Decision  Page 7 of 29 
 



 

This form legislated under Policy Statement No. 01-27: County Council Meetings Request for Decision  Page 8 of 29 
 



 

This form legislated under Policy Statement No. 01-27: County Council Meetings Request for Decision  Page 9 of 29 
 

 

 

 



 

This form legislated under Policy Statement No. 01-27: County Council Meetings Request for Decision  Page 10 of 29 
 

Enclosure #3: Land Use Bylaw No. 1272-14 Section 8.2 (AG District) & Section 8.11 (M2 District) 

 



 

This form legislated under Policy Statement No. 01-27: County Council Meetings Request for Decision  Page 11 of 29 
 



 

This form legislated under Policy Statement No. 01-27: County Council Meetings Request for Decision  Page 12 of 29 
 



 

This form legislated under Policy Statement No. 01-27: County Council Meetings Request for Decision  Page 13 of 29 
 



 

This form legislated under Policy Statement No. 01-27: County Council Meetings Request for Decision  Page 14 of 29 
 



 

This form legislated under Policy Statement No. 01-27: County Council Meetings Request for Decision  Page 15 of 29 
 



 

This form legislated under Policy Statement No. 01-27: County Council Meetings Request for Decision  Page 16 of 29 
 



 

This form legislated under Policy Statement No. 01-27: County Council Meetings Request for Decision  Page 17 of 29 
 



 

This form legislated under Policy Statement No. 01-27: County Council Meetings Request for Decision  Page 18 of 29 
 

 

 



 

This form legislated under Policy Statement No. 01-27: County Council Meetings Request for Decision  Page 19 of 29 
 

Enclosure #4: Municipal Development Plan Bylaw No. 1249-12 Section 4.1 (Agriculture Policy) and 

Section 4.4 (Commercial Policy) 

 



 

This form legislated under Policy Statement No. 01-27: County Council Meetings Request for Decision  Page 20 of 29 
 



 

This form legislated under Policy Statement No. 01-27: County Council Meetings Request for Decision  Page 21 of 29 
 



 

This form legislated under Policy Statement No. 01-27: County Council Meetings Request for Decision  Page 22 of 29 
 



 

This form legislated under Policy Statement No. 01-27: County Council Meetings Request for Decision  Page 23 of 29 
 



 

This form legislated under Policy Statement No. 01-27: County Council Meetings Request for Decision  Page 24 of 29 
 



 

This form legislated under Policy Statement No. 01-27: County Council Meetings Request for Decision  Page 25 of 29 
 



 

This form legislated under Policy Statement No. 01-27: County Council Meetings Request for Decision  Page 26 of 29 
 



 

This form legislated under Policy Statement No. 01-27: County Council Meetings Request for Decision  Page 27 of 29 
 



 

This form legislated under Policy Statement No. 01-27: County Council Meetings Request for Decision  Page 28 of 29 
 



 

This form legislated under Policy Statement No. 01-27: County Council Meetings Request for Decision  Page 29 of 29 
 

 



 Request for Decision (RFD) 
 

Meeting Date: Thursday, March 27, 2025    Agenda Item: #  
 

Topic: Expression of Interest to Purchase County Owned Lands legally described as Plan 

716CL, Block 2, Lot 1, located within the Hamlet of Warspite.  

 

Presented By: Planning & Development Services  

Recommendation: 

That Smoky Lake County accept the Expression of Interest to Purchase in the amount of 

$1,000.00 + G.S.T., (total sale price of $1,050.00) received from Mr. Bruce Morton, for the 

purchase of the lands legally described as Plan 716Cl, Block 2, Lot 1, and advertise for 2 weeks 

consecutive, in accordance with Smoky Lake County Policy Statement 61-10: Disposition of 

County Owned Lands, and if no other offers being received before closure, to execute a sale 

agreement with the applicant upon receipt of full payment.  

 

Background:  

 
On March 5, 2025, Smoky Lake County administration received an Expression of Interest to Purchase the 
County Owned Lands legally described as Plan 716CL, Block 2, Lot 1, located within the Hamlet of Warspite, 
to be utilized for the provision of off-street parking for the adjacent Warspite Hotel. The interested party has 
provided a $200.00 deposit in accordance with Policy Statement 61-10: Disposition of County Owned 
Property.  
 
This subject lands are currently undeveloped and the applicant does not propose to develop the lands in the 
near future. The subject lands were previously advertised for sale in the Redwater Review during the weeks 
of October 25th and November 1st, 2023, and was also advertised for sale to the adjacent landowners in 
August, 2024. No offers were received during either of these advertisements.  
 
Benefits: Revenue & assessment.  
Disadvantages: None. 

Alternatives: Council discretion to vary or waiver Policy Statement 61-10.  

Financial Implications: The County anticipates proceeds of the sale (i.e. $1,000.00), and a newly 

taxable parcel annually, in perpetuity. 

Legislation: Municipal Government Act. 

Intergovernmental: Nil. 

Strategic Alignment: Proactivity in Development 

Enclosure(s): 

• Enclosure #1: Expression of Interest Dated March 5, 2025  

• Enclosure #2: Site Photo & Orthophoto  

• Enclosure #3: Policy Statement 61-10: Disposition of County Owned Property 

 

Signature of the CAO: __________________________              Date: ______________________ 

7.2



 

This form legislated under Policy Statement No. 01-27: County Council Meetings Request for Decision  Page 2 of 18 
 

Enclosure #1: Expression of Interest Dated March 5, 2025 



 

This form legislated under Policy Statement No. 01-27: County Council Meetings Request for Decision  Page 3 of 18 
 

 

 



 

This form legislated under Policy Statement No. 01-27: County Council Meetings Request for Decision  Page 4 of 18 
 

Enclosure #2: Site Photo & Orthophoto  

 

 



 

This form legislated under Policy Statement No. 01-27: County Council Meetings Request for Decision  Page 5 of 18 
 

Enclosure #3: Policy Statement 61-10: Disposition of County Owned Property 

 



 

This form legislated under Policy Statement No. 01-27: County Council Meetings Request for Decision  Page 6 of 18 
 



 

This form legislated under Policy Statement No. 01-27: County Council Meetings Request for Decision  Page 7 of 18 
 



 

This form legislated under Policy Statement No. 01-27: County Council Meetings Request for Decision  Page 8 of 18 
 



 

This form legislated under Policy Statement No. 01-27: County Council Meetings Request for Decision  Page 9 of 18 
 



 

This form legislated under Policy Statement No. 01-27: County Council Meetings Request for Decision  Page 10 of 18 
 



 

This form legislated under Policy Statement No. 01-27: County Council Meetings Request for Decision  Page 11 of 18 
 



 

This form legislated under Policy Statement No. 01-27: County Council Meetings Request for Decision  Page 12 of 18 
 



 

This form legislated under Policy Statement No. 01-27: County Council Meetings Request for Decision  Page 13 of 18 
 



 

This form legislated under Policy Statement No. 01-27: County Council Meetings Request for Decision  Page 14 of 18 
 



 

This form legislated under Policy Statement No. 01-27: County Council Meetings Request for Decision  Page 15 of 18 
 



 

This form legislated under Policy Statement No. 01-27: County Council Meetings Request for Decision  Page 16 of 18 
 



 

This form legislated under Policy Statement No. 01-27: County Council Meetings Request for Decision  Page 17 of 18 
 



 

This form legislated under Policy Statement No. 01-27: County Council Meetings Request for Decision  Page 18 of 18 
 

 



 Request for Decision (RFD) 
 

Meeting Date: Thursday, March 27, 2025    Agenda Item: #  
 

Topic: Request to have Smoky Lake County clear and construct low-grade road in 

undeveloped government road allowance south of SE-14-59-16-W4M (TWP RD 592 & 

RGE RD 161A)  

 

Presented By: Planning & Development Services  

Recommendation: 

That Smoky Lake County instruct the Public Works Department to clear a portion 

(approximately 300 meters in length) of the undeveloped government road allowance lying 

south of the lands legally described as SE-14-59-16-W4M, and to construct a low-grade road on 

said cleared portions, pursuant to the scope of work provided by the Smoky Lake County Road 

Foreman, dated March 5, 2025. 

 

Background:  

 
On March 13, 2025, the owner of the lands legally described as SE-14-59-16-W4M, appeared before Council 
as a delegation, requesting the County to clear a portion of the undeveloped government road allowance 
bordering the south of his property, and requesting the construction of a low-grade road. At this meeting, 
Council deferred taking action on the owner’s request until a cost estimate was provided. On March 5, 2025, 
the Planning and Development Manager and the Road Foreman visited the subject site in order to determine 
the amount of work required to facilitate access. A scope of work, including anticipated costs, prepared by 
the Road Foreman is attached for reference.  
 
This subject lands are currently undeveloped and the applicant intends to place a ready-to-move (RTM) home 
and shop on the lands. The existing state of the undeveloped road allowance prevents the land owner from 
moving an RTM onto the property. 
 
Benefits: Tax revenue & assessment resulting from the construction of a home & shop  
Disadvantages: Costs associated with clearing road allowance & road construction 

Alternatives: Deny request  

Financial Implications: The County anticipates the costs of the project to total approximately 

$7,5000 in labour and materials expenses 

Legislation: Nil. 

Intergovernmental: Nil. 

Strategic Alignment: Proactivity in Development 

Enclosure(s): 

• Enclosure #1: Scope of Work & Cost Estimate, March 5, 2025  

• Enclosure #2: Site Orthophoto  

 

Signature of the CAO: __________________________              Date: ______________________ 

 

7.3



 

This form legislated under Policy Statement No. 01-27: County Council Meetings Request for Decision  Page 2 of 3 
 

Enclosure #1: Scope of Work & Cost Estimate, March 5, 2025  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

This form legislated under Policy Statement No. 01-27: County Council Meetings Request for Decision  Page 3 of 3 
 

Enclosure #2: Site Orthophoto  

 



7.4











7.5







7.6

















7.7





























7.8









7.9







7.10

















7.11















10.1



Tourism Conference&. Trad 

• 

� 780-657-3395

bross@townoftwohills.com 
�Two Hills Alberta 

REGISTER AT: goeastofedmonton.com/P-roducts/exP-lore 

-town-of-two-hi lls-tou rism-conference-tradeshow /



APRIL 23, 2025
4 pm - 7 pm 

TOURISM
DEVELOPMENT

MÉTIS CROSSING CULTURAL
GATHERING CENTRE
17339 Victoria Trail

Drop in for introductions, information, and resources!
Bring your brochures and share your 2025 goals and
marketing plans. No formal presentations!

Connect one-on-one to learn more about Travel
Alberta’s Tourism Development Zones, Destination
Development, Funding, as well as the exciting work taking
place within the region with Travel Lakeland and other
tourism partners.

QUESTIONS?

Info-sharing for Entrepreneurs & Operators

Marianne Janke, Travel Lakeland
adventure@travellakeland.ca

Chris Down, Travel Alberta
chris.down@travelalberta.com

Métis Dining Experience
The Restaurant will be open

and offering a set menu.

10.2

mailto:adventure@travellakeland.ca
mailto:chris.down@travelalberta.com


9725 – 266 STREET, ACHESON, ALBERTA T7X 6H6  PHONE (780) 463-3363  FAX (780) 469-4967 
www.dirtmoving.com 

 

Damien DeClercq 
c/o Prairie North Const. Ltd. 
9725 – 266 Street 
Acheson, Alberta 
T7X 6H6 
(780) 887-6979 
DamienD@dirtmoving.com  

March 10th, 2025 

RE: Smoky Lake County – Contract 20233697-01 – BF76552 Culvert Replacement 

To whom it may concern, 

Please be advised that Prairie North Const. Ltd. has been awarded Contract 20233697-
01 for Bridge File 76552 Culvert Replacement and Other Work.  The project’s intent is 
to replace a Culvert crossing under Range Road 132, between Township Road 610 and 
614.  The existing crossing is located at the intersection of four Alberta township 
systems within the County of Smoky Lake, Alberta, at NE-10-061-13-W4M, NW-11-061-
13-W4M, SE-10-061-13-W4M, and SW-11-061-13-W4M.  The project also includes a 
temporary road detour (where speed will be lowered to 10km/hr) during culvert 
replacement works. 

Works are intended to start by March 18th, 2025 with an anticipated completion date of 
April 15th, 2025 (or sooner).  Any comments or concerns can be directed to Prairie North 
Const. Ltd.’s Site Superintendent: 

Jon Wiles (780) 913-7543 JonW@dirtmoving.com 
 
Prairie North Const. Ltd. appreciates your cooperation and patience while we undertake 
this project and we look forward to safely and sustainably improving the infrastructure 
which connects our communities. 

10.3



10.4



10.5

































From: Perry Gillam
To: spencer kotylak
Cc: scott franchuk
Subject: RE: Grant Funding Received - Smoky Lake County
Date: Tuesday, January 21, 2025 1:44:54 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.jpg
image003.jpg
image004.jpg

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when
opening attachments or clicking links, especially from unknown senders.

Hi Spencer
 
Good to hear!
 
The members must be excited to play with the new toys.
 
Should provide an added response capability for your dept.
 
Keep me posted!
 
Perry
 

From: Spencer Kotylak <skotylak@smokylakecounty.ab.ca> 
Sent: Tuesday, January 21, 2025 11:27 AM
To: Perry Gillam <perry.gillam@enbridge.com>
Cc: Scott Franchuk <sfranchuk@smokylakecounty.ab.ca>
Subject: [External] Grant Funding Received - Smoky Lake County

 

  
CAUTION! EXTERNAL SENDER
Were you expecting this email? TAKE A CLOSER LOOK. Is the sender legitimate?
DO NOT click links or open attachments unless you are 100% sure that the email is safe.

Good Morning Perry,
 
Hope all is well, just wanted to let you know that we received the additional $15,000.00 from
the Safe Communities Grant and we are very grateful to receive this funding.
We are getting the Combi Rescue tool ordered here and we will let you know when it arrives so
we can promote what You and Enbridge have achieved for our Fire Department .
 
Best Regards,
Spencer Kotylak
 
 
Spencer Kotylak
Deputy Fire Chief

10.6

mailto:perry.gillam@enbridge.com
mailto:skotylak@smokylakecounty.ab.ca
mailto:sfranchuk@smokylakecounty.ab.ca






From: noreply.grants
To: spencer kotylak
Subject: We"ve approved your Enbridge Fueling Futures grant request! (Ref#2024100190)
Date: Saturday, November 2, 2024 4:14:14 PM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when
opening attachments or clicking links, especially from unknown senders.

 

Hello, Spencer Kotylak,

We are happy to inform you that Enbridge has approved your Fueling
Futures grant request in the amount of CA$10,000.00

By collaborating with community leaders like you, we're Fueling
Futures. Together we're energizing communities through initiatives
that strengthen community safety, vibrancy and sustainability.
Enbridge is proud to support local priorities that make positive and
lasting impacts in our communities.

We'd be honored if you shared your story on the social media channel
of your choice or with your local media. We invite you to tag us using
@Enbridge or the hashtag #ENBFuelingFutures so we can help
spread the word.

Sincerely,

Enbridge

We're working to make tomorrow safer, more vibrant and sustainable.

© 2024 Benevity, Inc. All Rights Reserved.

10.6.1

mailto:noreply.grants@benevity.com
mailto:skotylak@smokylakecounty.ab.ca

	~ 2025 03 27 Council Agenda
	3.1 2025-03-13 County Council.MIN-Public Hearing
	3.2 2025 03 13 MPC Minutes
	4.1 Delegation -Smoky Lake Library at 930am
	4.1.1 - FCSS Regional Proposal
	4.2 Delegation 945am  Letter to Smoky Lake County March 11, 2025 RE Floor Replacement. Letter of Support SIGNED
	4.3 Delegation RCMP - @10am
	4.4 Delegation RMA Member Vists at 1pm
	7.1 RFD_Bylaw_1477_25_Bylaw_to_Amend_Bylaw_1272_14_&_Bylaw_1249_12
	7.2 RFD_Offer_to_Purchase_County_Owned_Land_Plan_716CL_Block_2_Lot_1
	7.3 RFD_Request_to_Clear_Undeveloped_Road_Allowance_SE_14_59_16_W4M
	7.4 Policy No. 01-54-01 Signing Authority
	7.5. Smoky Lake Holubka Dancers – Request for Donation for highway clean up
	7.6 Policy No. 01-01 Procedures and Transacting of Organizational Meeting
	7.7 Donation Request for Educational Opportinity
	7.8 Delta Waterfowl Parkland Pintails Chapter Donation for Fundraiser Dinner
	7.9 Farners Appreciation Day BBQ Event dated, June 13th, 2025 at the Smoky Lake Complex
	7.10 Draft Policy Volunteer Firefighter Compensation
	7.11 Fire Department Equipment Insurance
	8.1 CAO Report, March 21, 2025
	10.1 - Explore Two Hills Tourism Conference & Tradeshow
	Explore Two Hills Tourism Conference & Tradeshow
	10.2 Toursim Development & Info Sharing Event

	10.3 - Letter from Prairie North Const. LTD, Dated, March 10th, 2025
	10.4 - Aspen View Public Schools Career Fair Event, Dated, April 23rd, 2025, located in Athabasca Regional Multiplex request for Smo
	10.5 Fire Chiefs Conference
	10.6 Email from Perry Gillam Emergency Response Specialist - Enbridge, dated November 2, 2024 and January 21, 2025, in respect to F
	10.6.1 Email confirmation letter from Enbridge, dated Novemebr 2nd, 2024



